

St. Helens School District
and
St. Helens Education Association

~~2016-2018~~2018 - 2019

Agreement

SECOND REVISED SHEA PROPOSAL, 6/5/18

Table of Contents

<u>Article 1 - Recognition of Appropriate Bargaining Unit.....</u>	<u>1</u>
<u>Article 2 - Association Dues, Payroll Deductions and Fair Share.....</u>	<u>2</u>
<u>Article 3 - District Rights.....</u>	<u>5</u>
<u>Article 4 - Agreement Duration</u>	<u>7</u>
<u>Article 5 - Status of Agreement</u>	<u>7</u>
<u>Article 6 - Status of Part-Time Regular Employees</u>	<u>8</u>
<u>Article 7 - Job Sharing</u>	<u>9</u>
<u>Article 8 - Nondiscrimination: The Association and District</u>	<u>10</u>
<u>Article 9 - Vacancies and Transfers.....</u>	<u>11</u>
<u>Article 10 - Employee Work Year and Work Day</u>	<u>12</u>
<u>Article 11- Preparation Periods.....</u>	<u>15</u>
<u>Article 12 - Teaching Load/Pupil-Teacher Ratio/Class Size</u>	<u>16</u>
<u>Article 13 - Leaves.....</u>	<u>17</u>
<u>Article 14 - Reduction in Staff/Layoff and Recall.....</u>	<u>22</u>
<u>Article 15 - Salary and Miscellaneous Benefits.....</u>	<u>24</u>
<u>Article 16 - Extended Contracts.....</u>	<u>27</u>
<u>Article 17 - Extra Pay Conditions.....</u>	<u>28</u>
<u>Article 18 - Base Hourly Per Diem Rate</u>	<u>29</u>
<u>Article 19 - Emergency School Closure</u>	<u>29</u>
<u>Article 20 - Employee Insurance</u>	<u>29</u>
<u>Article 21 - Educational Development and Improvement</u>	<u>32</u>
<u>Article 22 - Early Retirement.....</u>	<u>33</u>
<u>Article 23 - Teaching Methods and Techniques</u>	<u>34</u>

<u>Article 24 - Textbook, Instructional Materials and Instructional Equipment Selection</u>	<u>35</u>
<u>Article 25 - Employee Evaluation.....</u>	<u>35</u>
<u>Article 26 -Employee Rights</u>	<u>36</u>
<u>Article 27 - Strikes and Lockouts</u>	<u>40</u>
<u>Article 28 - Labor Relations Committee.....</u>	<u>40</u>
<u>Article 29 - Grievance Procedures</u>	<u>41</u>
<u>Article 30 - Complaint Procedure</u>	<u>46</u>
<u>Article 31- Re-employment of Retired Employees</u>	<u>47</u>
<u>Appendix A: 2018-2019 Salary Schedule.....</u>	<u>49</u>
<u>Appendix B: Extra-Duty Salary Schedule Index - 2018-2019</u>	<u>51</u>
<u>Confirmation of Agreement.....</u>	<u>53</u>
<u>Building Annual Contract Check List (year).....</u>	<u>54</u>
12577881010121515172124252728293133333434353940404546485051525455	

Article 1 - Recognition of Appropriate Bargaining Unit

Sec 1.1 The St. Helens School District 502 recognizes the St. Helens Education Association as the exclusive bargaining representative for a unit consisting of all of the licensed employees of St. Helens School District 502, including Behavior Specialist, School Nurse and Child Development Specialist, excluding substitutes, designated supervisory and confidential employees and temporary teachers except as provided by contract.

Sec 1.1.1 Bargaining shall be understood as any offer to any member(s) of the bargaining unit to change language, salary, or benefits stated in this currently ratified contract.

Sec 1.2.1 Probationary ~~TeacherEmployee~~: Any ~~teacher-employee~~ who has been regularly employed by the District for less than three successive years and who has been renewed by the District, including those who are in their first year of ~~teachingemployment~~. [Tentative Agreement, 5/8/18]

Sec 1.2.2 Contract ~~TeacherEmployee~~: Any ~~teacher-employee~~ who is not probationary or temporary. has been regularly employed for a period of not less than three successive years and who has been extended by the District after the completion of such three-year period for the next succeeding school year, unless returning under the recall provisions of this agreement. [Tentative Agreement, 4/10/18]

Sec 1.2.3 Temporary ~~TeacherEmployee~~: Any ~~teacher-employee~~ who has been employed to fill a position designated as temporary or experimental or to fill a vacancy which occurs after the opening of school because of unanticipated enrollment or because of the death, disability, retirement, resignation or dismissal of a contract or probationary ~~teacher-employee~~, or for an ~~teacher-employee~~ on approved leave of absence. [Tentative Agreement, 5/8/18]

Sec 1.2.3.1 Temporary ~~teachers-employees~~ working between one and 60 days will not be considered a part of the St. Helens Education Association bargaining unit. Beginning day 61, temporary ~~teachers-employees~~ will be considered members of the St. Helens Education Association bargaining unit for all aspects of this Agreement excluding unpaid leaves, and layoff. [Tentative Agreement, 5/8/18]

Sec 1.2.3.2 For the purpose of this definition, "days" shall mean ~~teacher-employee~~ working days. [Tentative Agreement, 5/8/18]

Formatted: Font: Bold

Sec 1.2.4 Notwithstanding Section 1.1 above, Article 11, Preparation Periods, and Article 25, Employee Evaluation, shall not apply to the Behavior Specialist, School Nurse, and Child Development Specialist.

Article 2 - Association Dues, Payroll Deductions and Fair Share

Sec 2.1 Upon appropriate written request from the ~~teacher~~employee, the District shall deduct from the salary of any ~~teacher~~employee and make appropriate remittance for only the following deductions. No other deductions shall be permitted without the written agreement of the parties:

Life Insurance/Employee Purchased

Tax Sheltered Annuities

(Companies to be approved by Employee Investment Committee)

United Way

~~Credit Unions/Banks~~

Long Term Disability

~~Personal Choice Accounts~~

~~Saving Accounts~~

~~AFLAC Supplemental Insurance (Purchased by employee through AFLAC or American Fidelity)~~

~~IRS Section 125 Accounts - American Fidelity~~

~~Health Savings Accounts~~

Fitness Centers

Legal Shield

~~OEA Foundation~~

~~OEA PAC~~

NOTE: As of 5/24/18, only issue remaining is second sentence of opening paragraph

~~Sec 2.2 Hold Harmless - The Association shall hold the District harmless from any claims of a bargaining unit member that the Association has made an illegal expenditure of fair share fees, or that the extent of the fair share payroll deduction is unlawful. This hold harmless agreement shall be void unless the District: (1) gives immediate notice of any claim to the Association; (2) tenders to the Association the defense of any claim; and (3) fully cooperates with the Association and its designated counsel in the defense of the claim. [Language not in dispute]~~

~~Sec 2.52~~ Membership and Dues Deduction: Any licensed employee who is a member of the Association or has applied for membership may sign and deliver, either personally or through the Association, an assignment authorizing deductions for membership in the United Teaching Profession, (i.e., SHEA, OEA-NEA) to the accounting-payroll department of the Superintendent's office. Such authorization shall continue in effect from school year to school year, unless revoked or modified in writing as provided herein. [Language not in dispute]

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", Hanging: 0.5"

Formatted: No underline

Sec 2.32.1 Dues Deduction - The District will deduct for employee membership dues in the United Teaching Profession. ~~Sec 2.10 Members—The District shall deduct an amount equal to one-tenth of the dues of the Association, including the OEA and NEA dues, each month for ten consecutive months from the pay of each teacher beginning with the October paycheck. See 2.6—Deductions for employees who join the Association after the commencement of school shall be appropriately prorated so that payments will be completed by the final regular salary payment for the school year.~~ **[Only the last sentence remains in dispute]**

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Sec 2.72.2 Any authorization for deductions shall be filed with the accounting-payroll department 15 calendar days prior to the regular monthly salary payment date, or said deductions shall begin the next following regular monthly salary payment date. **[Language not in dispute]**

Sec 2.82.3 The Association agrees to advise the accounting-payroll department of the Superintendent's office of all members of the Association in good standing as membership changes for which a payroll deduction for dues is made by the District. The information shall be received in the accounting-payroll department on or before the 16th day of each month for which a payroll deduction is made, and to furnish any other information needed by this department to fulfill the provisions of this Article, and not otherwise readily available to the District. **[Language not in dispute]**

Sec 2.3 Maintenance of Membership: Except as may be otherwise required by law, all employees in the bargaining unit who become members of the Association shall remain members of the Association during the term of this Agreement, except that an Association member may withdraw from membership in the Association by providing a signed withdrawal statement to the Association and to the District within a fourteen (14) day window commencing October 1 each year. Notices of withdrawal received within that window shall be effective immediately; notices of withdrawal received outside of that window will become effective on October 1 following receipt of the notice by both the District and the Association. **[SHEA Proposal Amended 6/05/18.]**

Sec 2.414 ~~Non-members~~ Fair Share: —The District shall deduct a "payment in lieu of dues" from the monthly salary payments of nonmembers, unless the Association or nonmember certifies that payment in lieu of dues has been made directly. **[Language not in dispute]**

Sec 2.24.1 Hold Harmless -The Association shall hold the District harmless from any claims of a bargaining unit member that the Association has made an illegal expenditure of fair share fees, or that the extent of the fair share payroll deduction is unlawful. This hold harmless agreement shall be void unless the District: (1) gives immediate notice of any claim to the Association; (2) tenders to the Association the defense of any claim; and

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

(3) fully cooperates with the Association and its designated counsel in the defense of the claim. **[Language not in dispute]**

~~Sec 2.425~~ ~~In lieu of dues~~ **Religious Objectors:** –As provided by ORS 243.666(1) rights of non-Association teachers based on bona fide religious tenets or teachings of a church or religious body of which such teacher is a member shall be safeguarded. Such teacher shall pay an amount equivalent to regular union dues to a non-religious charity or to another charitable organization mutually agreed upon by the teacher affected and the Association. **[Language not in dispute]**

Formatted: No underline

~~Sec 2.6~~ Dues deducted from the salary of bargaining unit employees shall be remitted to the Association within seven (7) business days of the deduction. Remittances shall include a listing of employees from whom said deductions were made, and the amount of the deductions. **[Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #1 (Sec 2.13), 4/10/18, with a clarification that the last word should be “deductions,” not “reductions.”]**

~~Sec 2.97~~ **Information:** A list of employees on Association dues or Fair Share deduction shall be provided for the Association president upon request once each year following October payroll. **[Language not in dispute]**

Formatted: No underline

~~Sec 2.7.1~~ The District shall notify the Association of the name, mailing address, telephone number (if any), hire date, FTE, and pay rate of all newly hired bargaining unit employees within five (5) working days after Board approval of hiring. **[Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/8/18.]**

~~Sec 2.8~~ No bargaining unit employee, whether or not a member of SHEA, shall receive any compensation, benefit, or right in excess of that provided for in this Agreement, except by the written agreement of the parties.

~~Sec 2.49~~ The Association agrees to hold the District harmless against any and all claims, suits, orders or judgments brought against the District as a result of the provisions of this article. **[Language not in dispute]**

~~Sec 2.5~~ Any licensed employee who is a member of the Association or has applied for membership may sign and deliver, either personally or through the Association, an assignment authorizing deductions for membership in the United Teaching Profession, (i.e., SHEA, OEA, NEA) to the accounting payroll department of the Superintendent's office. Such authorization shall continue in effect from school year to school year, unless revoked or modified in writing as provided herein. **[Language not in dispute]**

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

~~Sec 2.6~~ Deductions for employees who join the Association after the commencement of school shall be appropriately prorated so that payments will be completed by the final regular salary payment for the school year. **[Language not in dispute]**

~~Sec 2.7 Any authorization for deductions shall be filed with the accounting payroll department 15 calendar days prior to the regular monthly salary payment date, or said deductions shall begin the next following regular monthly salary payment date. [Language not in dispute]~~

~~Sec 2.8 The Association agrees to advise the accounting payroll department of the Superintendent's office of all members of the Association in good standing as membership changes for which a payroll deduction for dues is made by the District. The information shall be received in the accounting payroll department on or before the 16th day of each month for which a payroll deduction is made, and to furnish any other information needed by this department to fulfill the provisions of this Article, and not otherwise readily available to the District.~~

~~Sec 2.9 A list of employees on Association dues or Fair Share deduction shall be provided for the Association president upon request once each year following October payroll. [Language not in dispute]~~

~~Sec 2.10 Members The District shall deduct an amount equal to one tenth of the dues of the Association, including the OEA and NEA dues, each month for ten consecutive months from the pay of each teacher beginning with the October paycheck. [Language not in dispute]~~

~~Sec 2.11 Non members The District shall deduct a "payment in lieu of dues" from the monthly salary payments of nonmembers, unless the Association or nonmember certifies that payment in lieu of dues has been made directly. [Language not in dispute]~~

~~Sec 2.12 In lieu of dues As provided by ORS 243.666(1) rights of non Association teachers based on bona fide religious tenets or teachings of a church or religious body of which such teacher is a member shall be safeguarded. Such teacher shall pay an amount equivalent to regular union dues to a non religious charity or to another charitable organization mutually agreed upon by the teacher affected and the Association. [Language not in dispute]~~

Article 3 - District Rights

Sec 3.1 The District hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties, responsibilities and obligations conferred upon and vested in it to operate and manage the school system and its programs, facilities, properties, and activities of its employees, during the performance of their assigned duties, in the service of the school District, by the constitution and laws of the state of Oregon, its judicial decisions and its executive orders, the United States constitution and its laws, judicial decisions and executive orders, and the will of the local District voters as expressed at the polls,

- Sec 3.2 Without limiting the statements contained in the foregoing section, it is expressly recognized that the District's operational and managerial authority, responsibility and accountability includes, but is not limited to the following statements:
- Sec 3.2.1 The determination of the management, supervisory or administrative organization of each school or facility in the District; the selection of the employees for, and promotion to management, supervisory or administrative positions; the right of such designated employees to perform the inherent management, supervisory or administrative functions and directives of the District.
- Sec 3.2.2 The determination of the financial policy and procedures of the District, including all general accounting procedures, inventories of supplies and equipment procedures. The right to enforce rules and regulations now in effect and to establish new rules and regulations, and to abolish the same from time to time, not in conflict with this Agreement. The right to inform the public and all the District's employees on any and all matters pertaining to the District, except as specifically prohibited by state law or this Agreement.
- Sec 3.2.3 The determination of safety, health, welfare and emergency protection measures applicable to people or property where the legal or public responsibility of the District or other governmental unit is involved. To protect personal and constitutional rights of students, employees, school officials and that of the general public.
- Sec 3.2.4 The determination and use and control over all District property and facilities. The right to protect, preserve and maintain all District property and facilities. The right to determine the location of District property and facilities. The right to establish new facilities, to relocate or close any District facilities. The right to acquire or dispose of property and facilities.
- Sec 3.2.5 The determination of the size of the working force, the allocation and assignment of work to employees, the determination of policies affecting the selection of employees, and the establishment of quality standards and judgment of employee performance. The direction and arrangement of all the working forces in the District, including the right to hire, suspend, discipline, transfer or discharge employees; to temporarily relieve employees from duty unless otherwise stated in this contract. The creation, combination, modification or elimination of any position deemed advisable by the District.
- Sec 3.2.6 The determination of the layout and equipment to be used, subjects to be taught, and the right to plan, direct and control school activities. The right to establish and revise the school calendar, establish hours of employment to schedule classes and assign workloads, and to select textbooks, teaching

aids and materials, The right to make assignments for all programs of an extracurricular, co-curricular, student activity or athletic program.

Sec 3.2.7 The right to continue to review, study and achieve improved teaching methods, plans, programs, projects, curriculum and innovative means to improve schools and education and the training of students. The District shall continue to participate, when and where feasible and practicable, with governmental units and agencies (local, state or federal) in such improvements and innovative means as it deems necessary to accomplish the improved qualities of education,

Sec 3.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall limit in any way the District's contracting or, subcontracting of work or programs or shall require the District to continue in existence any of its present programs in its present form and/or location or on any other basis. However, the District will negotiate the impact of subcontracting work or programs with the Association.

Sec 3.4 The foregoing functions of the District shall not be considered to exclude other functions of the District not specifically set forth; the District retains all functions and rights to act not specifically nullified by this Agreement.

Sec 3.5 The exercise of the foregoing powers, right, authority, duties, responsibilities and obligations of the District, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof; and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and expressed terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and expressed terms hereof are in conformance with the constitution and laws of the state of Oregon, and the constitution and laws of the United States, judicial decisions, executive orders and the will of the state electorate and that of the school District as expressed at the polls.

Article 4 - Agreement Duration

The provisions of this Agreement shall be effective the date of execution except as specifically identified herein and shall be binding upon the District, the Association and all members of the bargaining unit, and shall remain in full force and effect through June 30, ~~2018~~2019, when it shall terminate. **[Tentative Agreement, 5/8/18,]**

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Article 5 - Status of Agreement

Sec 5.1 There shall be two signed copies of the final Agreement for the purpose of records. One shall be retained by the Association and one by the District. Both copies shall be "official copies".

Sec 5.2 The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter appropriate for collective

bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity and set forth in this Agreement.

Therefore, the District and the Association, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time that they negotiated or signed this Agreement except as provided in ORS 243.698.

Sec 5.3 If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid by operation of law or by a tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any provision should be restrained by any such tribunal; the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby. Upon the request of either the District or the Association, the parties shall enter into negotiations for the purpose of attempting to arrive at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such provision; provided, however, that the provisions of Article 27 (Strikes/Lockouts) shall continue in full force and effect even though a satisfactory replacement is not achieved.

Sec 5.4 Upon expiration, this Agreement shall continue and remain in full force for successive periods of one year (fiscal year) unless either party shall by November 15 serve written notice on the other party of a desire to terminate, modify, change or amend this Agreement for the next fiscal year, beginning July 1. If reopened, then this Agreement will terminate on the date set forth in Article 4.

Sec 5.5 After receipt of such written notice by either party to terminate, modify, change or amend this Agreement, an initial meeting between the Association representatives and the District representatives will be established by mutual consent of the two parties through the Superintendent of the District.

Sec 5.6 Within 60 days after the date of final ratification of this Agreement, the District will post the Agreement on the District website for members to access and the District will provide an editable copy of this Agreement to the Association in a mutually agreed upon format.

Sec 5.7 New employees will be given a copy of the Agreement by the District during the first week they report for work. Expense of these copies will be borne by the District.

Article 6 - Status of Part-Time Regular Employees

Sec 6.1 Employees working less than 30 hours per week but at least 20 hours per week will receive employee-only insurance benefits. They will be eligible for proportionate sick leave, sick time, and other leave for which they are eligible. To be eligible for paid lunch periods, a person must work more than one-half of the

workday. Part time employees who work 30 hours or more shall receive the same fringe benefits as full time employees.

- Sec 6.2 Part time employees (½ time or more) will advance on both salary and seniority at one year's experience and one year's seniority.
- Sec 6.3 Part-time employees who are required to be present beyond their regular workday shall be paid at their hourly per diem rate. Part-time employees are not eligible to receive extra compensation for functions for which full-time teachers are required to be in attendance but for which they do not receive additional compensation.
- Sec 6.4 Part-time employee FTE is determined as a proportion of a full time employee in the same building. The same proration applies to part-time employee preparation time.
- Sec 6.5 The District will provide a list of all licensed employees' FTE to the Association upon request.

Article 7 - Job Sharing

- Sec 7.1 Job sharing is defined as one position shared equally by two persons licensed to assume the responsibilities described in the job description. Teachers who job share will have the first opportunity to substitute for each other.

Job sharing requests will be considered on an individual basis in accordance with their compliance with the following requirements:

- Sec 7.1.1 The sharing of one position by two job-sharing employees will be approved if determined to be in the best interest of the District. Probationary teachers will not be considered. Once a job share has been approved the District must inform the teachers in writing of their new contract status (i.e., loss of full time status and right to full time employment).
- Sec 7.1.2 All salary and benefits, including sick leave days, other paid leave days and insurance payments shall be prorated for job-sharing teachers. Full insurance coverage will be made available as a payroll deduction.
- Sec 7.1.3 Job-sharing teachers wishing to continue the assignment the following year must make this request in writing to the District office by March 15.
- Sec 7.1.4 Each job-sharing position shall be evaluated annually to determine renewal.
- Sec 7.1.5 Job-sharing teachers sharing one job will sign the job sharing agreement prior to the start of the assignment.

Sec 7.1.6 If a job-sharing teacher substitutes for another job-sharing teacher, he or she will be paid at his or her regular rate.

Sec 7.1.7 After three years of job-sharing, employees will be considered part-time employees and will no longer have rights to full-time positions.

Sec 7.2 The building administrator shall develop schedules, assign duties and provide for preparation time. It shall be the responsibility of the two parties to divide their time so that these agreements are equitable. If the two teachers have not, by May 1, communicated to the principal their agreement over the schedule, they shall each submit a written final proposal to the other and the principal by May 10. The principal shall attempt to mediate the differences. If such mediation does not promptly produce a mutual agreement, by May 20, the job sharing will not take place.

Sec 7.3 Employees will be placed on salary schedule in accordance with their experience and training and advance on the schedule as if they had one full time years' experience.

Sec 7.4 No employee in the District shall be involuntarily transferred in order to create a shared-time position.

Sec 7.5 If attendance is required of both parties on in-service days, both parties shall be compensated. If attendance is required of both parties on teacher parent conference days both parties shall attend with no additional compensation. The employee working on the day of a faculty meeting will be responsible for attending the meeting and passing the information to the other team member.

Sec 7.6 If a job sharing position terminates, the senior member will have the option of filling the full time position or requesting a transfer to another open position in the District for which he/she is licensed and qualified. If the senior member stays in the assignment, the other employee will be assigned to a position for which he/she is licensed, and has seniority as established in Article 14, Layoff and Recall.

Sec 7.7 In the event a dispute arises between the employee(s) and the District concerning the implementation and/or administration of this article, the employee may seek resolution through the grievance procedure or through the legal system but may not pursue the matter through both.

Article 8 - Nondiscrimination: The Association and District

Sec 8.1 The Association and the District affirm their adherence to the principles of free choice and agree that they shall not discriminate against any employee covered by this Agreement because of age, race, religion, sex, national origin, physical disabilities, membership or non-membership in the Association, creed, color, union activities, domicile, marital status, sexual orientation, ethnicity, or membership in any other protected class.

- Sec 8.2 All reference to employees in this Agreement designates both sexes and when the male gender is used, it shall be construed to include both male and female employees. The use of he/she shall be the accepted reference.

Article 9 - Vacancies and Transfers

Vacancies and Voluntary Transfers

- Sec 9.1 Annually, prior to March 1, the District shall notify all employees of their right to request a transfer for the following school year. Employees who would like to request a transfer shall submit their interest to the personnel office by March 15; requests will be kept on file until March 15 of the following year.
- Sec 9.2 A vacancy is defined as an open position that was not filled through the transfer of a current qualified staff. An open position that can be filled through reassignment of staff is not considered a vacancy for the purposes of this article. A position with a proposed duration of longer than twelve (12) weeks will be posted in the following manner:
- Sec 9.2.1 Open positions occurring while school is in session will be posted for five (5) calendar days in the District. Vacancies will be posted in the designated places in each school building. Copies of the notice will be sent to the SHEA president, SHEA building representatives, building principals, and the head secretary in each building.
- Sec 9.2.2 Open positions occurring while school is not in session will be posted for five (5) calendar days in the District office. Copies of all postings will be sent to the SHEA president. Staff who have submitted a letter of interest to the personnel office and left a summer mailing address with the District will be notified by phone or mail.
- Sec 9.2.3 In-district applicants who meet the minimum qualifications shall receive an interview for the position. An in-district applicant not selected shall be informed in writing of the reasons they were not selected based on the criteria established prior to the open position being posted.
- Sec 9.3 Selection of the best candidate shall be based on established criteria specified in the position description and preferred by the building or program administrator.
- Sec 9.4 In the case of a temporary teaching position that becomes permanent, the District reserves the right to fill the position with the current temporary teacher if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the school.

Involuntary Transfers

- Sec 9.5 An involuntary transfer initiated by the District is subject to the following limitations, guidelines, and procedures.

- Sec 9.5.1 It may become necessary for the District to change the assignment of an employee prior to, at the beginning of, or during any school year. The District will endeavor to notify all employees of their assignments for the ensuing year not later than June 1. If conditions necessitate re-assignment of any employee after June 1, or at the time a decision to reassign is being formally considered, the employees shall be notified either by personal interview, telephone call or certified mail to his/her last known address as soon as practical.
- Sec 9.5.2 An involuntary transfer shall be for the following reasons: (1) realignment of staff as a result of a layoff or as a result of shifts in student enrollment; (2) more efficient utilization of staff; (3) enhanced overall instruction at grade levels; (4) opening a new building; or (5) closing a building. An involuntary transfer shall not be used for disciplinary purposes. **[Tentative Agreement, 4/10/18]**
- Sec 9.5.3 The affected employee will be notified of the decision to transfer and, upon request, will be provided written reasons for the transfer as soon as possible. At that time the principal or District administrator in immediate charge of the transfer will inform the employee of any known vacancies in the school District for which the employee may apply. The employee will have the opportunity to make known his/her wishes regarding the assignment and will be allowed to indicate his/her preference of assignment.
- Sec 9.5.4 Unless waived by the employee, the District will reassign him/her to the original position as soon as it becomes practical and possible to do so.
- Sec 9.5.5 An employee who has been involuntarily transferred may appeal the decision to transfer to the Superintendent and the school Board. The decision of the Board shall be final; however, alleged procedural violations are subject to the grievance procedure.
- Sec 9.5.6 In the event ~~of an involuntary transfer requires the employee to move to another classroom at another school,~~ the District shall provide one (1) full paid day for each employee to move. If the ~~involuntary transfer requires a room move within the same school campus, the District shall provide the employee a half day paid in order to move.~~ move is the result of the opening or closing of a building, an additional two (2) paid days per employee will be provided. In the case of a job shared assignment moving to another building, the two (2) employees will receive (1) one paid day each for a total of two (2) paid days. **[Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/8/18.]**

Formatted: Font: Bold

Article 10 - Employee Work Year and Work Day

- Sec 10.1 The school calendar shall be established by the District. A copy of the ensuing year's calendar, before its final adoption by the District, shall be given to the Association for input. The school work year for employees shall be within the confines of the school calendar, and shall not exceed 190 days comprising not more than 179 days when pupils are in attendance, six work in-service days and five paid holidays as designated in Section 10.3.
- Sec 10.2 The District reserves the right to adjust the calendar of any school year during that school year due to unforeseen circumstances.
- Sec 10.3 The school work year for employees is 190 days. Paid holidays are Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving, Presidents' Day and Memorial Day, as long as they fall within the 190-day working period. The District will give consideration to advisory suggestions offered by the Association in regard to the number and designation of those days that are not student in-seat days or holidays. The Martin Luther King, Jr. holiday is a non-contract day. State in-service Day is a non-contract day. The Wednesday before Thanksgiving is a non-contract day.

Sec 10.3.1 If a half-day of pre-service prior to the start of the year is not provided to staff for use in completing District-required online trainings, then one (1) early release day in September must be reserved for such purposes. [Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/8/18.]

- Sec 10.4 If members are required to work beyond the eight-hour workday to accommodate for parent-teacher conferences, the membership will be given equal time off as compensation. Special education teachers and specialists may be allowed to work in an office/classroom and must always be available during conference hours for parents requesting to conference with them.

- Sec 10.4.1 Evening conferences may be scheduled provided that:

- a. No classes will be held on days when evening conferences are scheduled.
- b. On days when evening conferences are scheduled, teachers will not be required to work more than eight (8) hours.
- c. Evening conferences will not be scheduled on Fridays or days before break periods.
- d. No more than one day of evening conferences may be scheduled during a conference cycle.

- Sec 10.5 The regular workday shall consist of eight working hours, including a 30-minute duty-free lunch, ~~except in cases of emergency~~. Employees shall be in the classroom available for supervision and student or parent conferences from 15 minutes before classes begin in the morning to 15 minutes after the end of the student day. Employees will be permitted to work Flexible ~~work hours will be~~

~~mutually arranged with the building principal~~ as long as the employees are present 15 minutes before and 15 minutes after the student day. On days of staff meetings and PLC meetings, teachers on flex schedules will revert to the regular building hours. **[Amended 4/17/18, editorial change 5/24/18.]**

Sec 10.5.1 Required attendance at open house or school fair events held outside of the work day may not extend past 7 pm. No more than one (1) such event may be held per year. If the event goes after building hours, members will be reimbursed at their individual hourly rate (salary/190 days/8 hours). [Renumbered 5/24/18 due to resolution of issue found in SHEA proposal 10.5.1.]

Sec 10.6 Employees shall adhere to the daily schedule, and shall make no commitments that will preclude their being present in their assigned duties and responsibilities. On the occasion when employees need to leave early they shall notify the principal's office before leaving. (This agreement is in lieu of the historical compensatory time.)

Sec 10.7 Other work time outside of preparation time or classroom time but within the confines of the regular workday may be designated. Examples of this are supervision of students, curriculum improvement and development, departmental and/or grade level planning; individual, group or committee projects relating to instructional materials, procedures, processes, curriculum, course of study, conferences with a student/parent/principal, or other matters relating to instruction or co-curricular functions, or student activities.

Sec 10.8 Employees shall attend staff meetings when required by the Superintendent or by the principal. No more than one staff meeting per month may be held outside of regular building hours. Staff members District-wide will be allowed to leave their work sites one-half (½) hour early on Fridays unless they are performing services for which they are receiving additional compensation from the District.

Sec 10.9 The District prefers parent-teacher conferences be held in the school building during previously scheduled conference hours. There may be occasions when this is not possible. In this occasion meeting places or hours may be scheduled through agreement of principal, teacher and legal guardian.

Sec 10.10 ~~The building principal shall designate the regularly scheduled lunch hours for the staff and for the students under his/her jurisdiction. He/She~~**The principal** shall designate the lunch time for each staff member. ~~.[Amended 4/27/18]~~

Sec 10.11 It is recognized teachers assume responsibilities outside the regular workday including, but not limited to, meeting with parents, attending IEP meetings, grading papers, developing unit/lesson plans and student activities. However, the Association reserves the right to proceed with the grievance procedure if there is a perceived problem with this clause.

Formatted: Font: Bold

- Sec 10.12 A specialist's (media specialist, music, or physical education teacher) daily student contact time shall not exceed that of the classroom teacher's daily student contact time.
- Sec 10.13 Teachers traveling between any schools shall be allotted a minimum of 30 minutes for travel, set-up, take-down, and for any unforeseen incidents. This travel time shall not be considered as preparation time.
- Sec 10.14 Teachers who are in their first two years of teaching will not be encouraged, nor required to serve on building, District, county or other committees and/or councils. [Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #1, of 5/8/18.]
- Sec 10.15 Teachers will not be required to serve on more than two (2) building, District, county or other committees and/or councils. If there is a committee that is not fully staffed, the building principal retains the right to assign teachers serving on less than two (2) committees and/or councils where additional staff are needed.
- Sec 10.16 Teachers may choose to work from home on teacher grading days provided that s/he "signs out" prior to working from home and provides a telephone number for immediate contact during the contracted work hours. Teachers working from home must comply with the deadlines established by the building principal for grade entry. Failure to turn in grades in a timely fashion or respond to telephone calls from the school during work hours may result in loss of the work from home privilege for the teacher for the rest of the academic year. A grading day will be scheduled coinciding with the end of each grading quarter

Article 11- Preparation Periods

- Sec 11.1 Each teacher shall be scheduled a minimum of 235 minutes of preparation time per week with an uninterrupted time block of no less than 30 minutes daily. No teacher will lose a preparation period in any given week except in case of emergency, emergency drill or absence.
- Sec 11.2 In any instance when the workday is reduced, scheduled school periods shortened, or the day's schedule is adjusted because of the educational program, co-curricular functions, activity programs, transportation requirements, emergencies, or unusual circumstances, the instructional preparation may be proportionally shortened with no recourse by processes of the grievance procedure.
- Sec 11.3 The District retains the right to increase student contact time within the above preparation time guarantees and the guarantees contained in Article 10.
- Sec 11.4 Special Education classroom teachers shall be provided a substitute for up to three (3) days of release time per year in order to conduct or complete special education work. This work will be directed by the Special Education teacher, aligned with daily work responsibilities and approved by the administrator.

The special education classroom teacher must submit a request to the building principal for the substitute a minimum of two (2) days in advance. The request shall be approved by the building principal and special education director. The teacher shall work on campus while utilizing a substitute under this provision.

The building administrator and special education director may authorize additional leave time for a special education teacher upon request. The district may provide additional time for Special Education teachers to complete intermittent work responsibilities (examples: 1-1 state testing or Oregon Department of Education complaint investigations).

Sec 11.5 Case managers who have caseloads of twenty (20) or more at the secondary level shall be provided at least one (1) consult period per day.

Article 12 - Teaching Load/Pupil-Teacher Ratio/Class Size

Sec 12.1 The District will maintain class sizes and teacher assignments which promote effective practices consistent with the outcomes expected of each instructional program, and the terms of this Agreement.~~determine the teaching load for teachers based on minimum standards for Oregon Schools. (OAR-581-022-46302335).~~

Sec 12.2 ~~Upon request of either party a joint committee will be formed to review class size. The committee will be composed of six members with three appointed by the Association and three appointed by the District. This committee will be appointed by the end of the previous school year and begin functioning prior to the first day of classes. During each year of the Agreement, the District will report to the committee and provide it with information regarding the various class sizes in the District, including special needs students, the number of preparation periods provided, and other relevant and reasonably available data. It is intended that the District's report will occur on or about the Friday of the second week of the school year and on or about the first Friday after the start of the second semester of each year. The joint committee will be charged with the responsibility of identifying and examining problem areas. Minutes of the meetings shall be shared with the Superintendent and Association. It is intended that suggested solutions to the identified problem areas would be recommended to the Superintendent by the joint committee. Employees who are members of the Association shall be compensated at a rate of \$21 per additional student per month when student counts rise above the Maximum Acceptable Student Counts, specified below:~~

Sec 12.2.1 Acceptable Student Counts per the above criteria are defined as:

<u>Grade Level/Position</u>	<u>Maximum Acceptable Student Count</u>
<u>K-1</u>	<u>23 per classroom</u>
<u>2-3</u>	<u>24 per classroom</u>
<u>4-5</u>	<u>26 per classroom</u>

Formatted Table

<u>K-5 specialist</u>	<u>35 sections per 1.0 FTE</u>
<u>6-9</u>	<u>30 per Core Content class; 28 per class for lab science, STEAM/STEM or construction CTE classes</u>
<u>10-12</u>	<u>33 per class, 30 per science, STEAM/STEM or construction CTE classes, or Advanced Placement class.</u>
<u>Speech/Language Pathologist</u>	<u>60 cases managed</u>
<u>Case Managers</u>	<u>40 cases managed</u>
<u>K-5 Counseling</u>	<u>600 students per Counselor</u>

Formatted Table

Sec 12.2.2 Students with an IEP shall be weighted at a rate of twice that of a general education student when calculating “maximum acceptable student count.”

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Sec 12.2.3 For the purpose of this article, “Core Content” is defined as Science, English (i.e. Humanities, Language Arts, etc.), Math, and Social Studies needed to graduate. “Core Content” does not include core content intervention classes such as Math/Literacy Lab.

Sec 12.2.4 Class size calculations will be made at the beginning of the fourth week of each semester and the numbers shall be fixed until the end of that semester. Employee Assistants (TAs) and Independent Study Students are not counted as part of classroom size. Stipend shall be paid during the second pay period of the semester, retroactive to the first day of each semester.

Sec 12.3 Teachers in charge of a school business that requires participation outside the school day (and who document to the building Administration that the hours spent on the school business outside the school day is equivalent to or exceeds the hours that would be spent on certain supervision duties) shall not be assigned certain supervision duties. Business related travel and expense reimbursement shall be pre-approved by the principal. Mileage may be reimbursed with prior approval by the principal.

Article 13 - Leaves

Paid Leaves

Sec 13.1 Sick Leave. The District shall allow each employee ten (10) days sick leave at full pay during each school year, or one day per month employed, whichever is greater, Sick leave shall be credited at the beginning of each school year. Employees who begin work after the start of the school year shall receive a pro-rata sick leave accrual. Sick leave not used shall accumulate for an unlimited number of days. Upon proper verification the District will allow the transfer of accumulated sick leave earned in other Oregon school districts up to a maximum of seventy-five (75) days (equivalent to 600 hours).

Sec 13.2 Sick leave will be granted in hourly increments with the following exception. In the event an employee must leave early, or arrive late for medical reasons and has so notified the building principal, and if the absence does not interfere with teaching duties (absence from classroom teaching), the absence may be made up. If the employee's absence is for longer than two hours (2) hours or requires the assignment of a substitute, the absence shall be charged against the employee's sick leave.

Sec 13.3 Sick leave will be used for employee absence due to the employee's illness or injury, a family member's or domestic partner's illness or injury, or for doctor's appointments. Sick leave for pregnancy related disabilities will be granted in conformance with state and federal law.

Sec 13.3.1 Any instance of employee abuse of sick leave shall be grounds for disciplinary action against the employee and shall be grounds for possible dismissal.

Sec 13.3.2 Pursuant to state and federal law, at the option of the District, an employee may be required to provide medical certification from the employee's attending physician or practitioner that the illness or injury prevents the employee from working in order to access his/her sick leave. Any out of pocket costs incurred in securing the certification shall be reimbursed by the District upon presentation of a receipt.

~~Sec 13.3.3 Injury on Duty Sick leave may be drawn on a pro rata basis and added to Workers' Compensation benefits. The combined pay shall not exceed the employee's regular salary. [Tentative Agreement, 4/10/18.]~~

Formatted: Font: Bold

Sec 13.4 A bank of sick leave for catastrophic events shall be established under the following conditions:

Sec 13.4.1 Individuals will be limited to a maximum use of 30 days per school year.

Sec 13.4.2 Contributions of sick leave days, for a catastrophic illness, by employees shall be voluntary.

Sec 13.4.3 The Association ~~executive board~~ Board of Directors shall be responsible for establishing and administering guidelines for use in compliance with state and federal law.

Sec 13.4.4 Guidelines shall be approved by both the District and the Association before implementation.

Sec 13.4.5 Sick time hours are not eligible for use or transfer to the sick leave bank for catastrophic illness.

Sec 13.5 Sick Time. Sick time will run concurrent with sick leave and bereavement leave ~~according to SB454.~~ **[Tentative Agreement, 4/10/18.]**

Formatted: Font: Bold

Sec 13.5.1 Employees working four hours per day will accrue 1 hour of sick time per 30 hours worked or 1-1/3 hours for 40 hours worked. Employees who work four hours or more per day will be frontloaded 40 hours of sick time at the beginning of the fiscal year.

Sec 13.5.2 Sick time leave will be paid time applied concurrently with all other applicable leaves currently provided by state and federal leave laws and under the provisions of this contract.

Sec 13.5.3 Maximum sick time use in a fiscal year is 40 hours with a maximum accrual of 80 hours.

Sec 13.6 Discretionary Leave. Up to ~~four (4)~~**six (6)** half days or ~~two (2)~~**three (3)** full days of leave shall be granted each year to each employee to attend to personal matters, with no restrictions. ~~Employees may carry over one (1) leave day each year for a maximum of three (3) discretionary leave days in any one (1) year.~~ Employees who do not use discretionary days ~~or carry the day over to the next year~~ will be paid the current substitute teacher pay rate per day not used as published by the Oregon Department of Education. Reimbursement will be issued by August 30th. Use of this leave must be ~~submitted and approved through~~ **entered into** the District leave request system.

Sec 13.7 Bereavement Leave. Up to three (3) days per occurrence shall be granted each employee in the event of the death of any family member, family member of a spouse or domestic partner, or any person residing in your home. Use of this leave must be submitted and approved through the District leave request system. In addition to these benefits the District shall comply with the Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA) and the paid bereavement leave in this section shall run concurrently with leave provisions under OFLA. The definition of family members is different under OFLA than in this section. The bereavement leave under OFLA will apply only for family members listed under the law. Additional leave may be requested and, if approved, will be deducted from sick leave and sick time concurrently, if available. If no sick leave or sick time is available, additional leave will be unpaid.

Sec 13.8 Employee absences not in accordance with Sections 13.1 through 13.8 of this article shall result in a deduction of the employee's pay in the amount of 1/190th of the employee's contract for each day absent.

Sec 13.9 Jury Duty and Subpoena for Court Appearance. Leave of absence shall be authorized for jury duty or under subpoena. Employees may secure support from the District office in seeking relief from jury duty when it interferes seriously with professional obligations to the teaching assignment. Exclusive of expenses incurred, fees received by the employee for services performed during working

hours while on jury or court duty shall be deposited with the District, and no deduction in pay will be made by the District in subsequent pay periods.

Sec 13.9.1 Subpoena leave is not available when the employee or the Association is a complainant against the District.

Sec 13.9.2 The employee must, unless excused by the principal, report for work promptly after his/her required appearance has terminated.

Sec 13.10 Parental and Family Leave. Parental and family leave shall be granted to all employees in accordance with the mandates of the federal Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and/or the Oregon Family ~~Medical~~ Leave Act (OFMLA). **[Tentative Agreement, 4/10/18.]**

Formatted: Font: Bold

Sec 13.10.1 The District will post a copy of current federal and state family and parental leave laws on the District website.

Sec 13.10.2 Upon the exhaustion of accumulated sick leave the District will pay only the employee's medical and dental insurance premium during the remainder of the authorized parental leave.

Sec 13.11 Workers' Compensation. Employees will suffer no loss in pay or benefits as a result of workplace illnesses and injuries, including the first three (3) days absence not compensated by Workers' Compensation payments. If a Worker's Compensation claim is denied, the District may deduct the first three (3) days of absence from the employee's sick leave or pay if the employee has exhausted all sick leave.

After three (3) days, sick leave may be drawn on a pro-rata basis and added to Worker's Compensation benefits for an approved claim. The combined pay shall not exceed the employee's regular salary. [Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #1, 4/10/18.]

Unpaid Leaves

Sec 13.11 Temporary employees are not eligible for unpaid leave under this article.

Sec 13.12 Unpaid leaves of two (2) days or less during any contract year shall result in a deduction from the employee's pay in the amount of 1/190th of the employee's regularly contracted salary for each day absent. Employees must notify his/her building principal or supervisor at least five (5) workdays in advance of the anticipated absence except in cases of emergency due to no fault of employee.

Sec 13.13 The parties will comply with state and federal family leave laws.

Sec 13.14 Extension of Parental/Family Leave. Extension of parental leave beyond state and federal requirements shall be at the sole discretion of the District. The employee

will be given opportunity to present unusual circumstances in writing to the District for their review, evaluation and decision.

Sec 13.14.1 Should the District extend the parental leave, the District will accept from the employee, during this period, funds to pay the employee's insurance for dental and health coverage. These insurance premiums must be paid by the 15th day of the month preceding the last day of used sick leave, and by the 15th day of the month thereafter. The decision by the District whether or not to extend parental leave beyond twelve (12) weeks shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. If the employee's extension is denied the District will respond in writing stating the reasons for denial. A copy must be sent to the employee.

Sec 13.14.2 Extension of family leave beyond that provided by the state and federal family leave laws shall be at the discretion of the District and not subject to the grievance procedure. Upon granting an extension, the District will accept from the employee, funds to pay the employee's insurance for dental and health coverage. These insurance premiums must be paid by the 15th of the month.

Sec 13.15 Upon petition to the District by an employee for a long-term (e.g., longer than 2 work days per contract year) unpaid leave of absence the employee will be given an opportunity to meet with the Superintendent or his/her designee to present his/her reasons for requesting the leave. The Superintendent or his/her designee shall assess, evaluate, and establish conditions in terms of granting the leave and provide written notification to the employee. The decision of the Superintendent or his/her designee shall be final in these cases.

Sec 13.16 If unpaid leave is approved, the employee shall be allowed to return to the District at the end of the leave to the same or similar position held before the leave began, providing he/she holds the proper licensure for the position. Contractual benefits, including but not limited to salary placement, eligibility for fringe benefits, seniority, and any other accrued benefits shall be reinstated in a manner which reflects neither loss nor gain for the employee as a result of taking the leave.

Sec 13.17 Sabbatical Leave. Once every seven years, employees have the opportunity to take an unpaid leave of absence for the duration of a year for rest, study or travel. No gain or loss of seniority will be accrued.

Sec 13.17.1 This sabbatical must be pre-arranged to give the District time to obtain suitable relief, with consent of both parties. Employees must inform the District by March 15 of their intent to return for the succeeding year. Employees taking this leave will be able to purchase insurance through the District at COBRA cost.

Sec 13.17.2 Notwithstanding the one (1) year leave limitation above, employees who obtain a teaching position through the United States Department of

Defense will be permitted two years of sabbatical leave. [Tentative Agreement, 4/10/18.]

- Sec 13.18 Military Leave. This leave shall be in accordance with applicable Oregon and federal law.
- Sec13.19 Leave of Absence for Peace Corps. This leave shall be in accordance with applicable Oregon and federal laws.
- Sec 13.20 Search and Rescue. This leave shall be in accordance with applicable Oregon and federal law. (See ORS 652.250.)
- Sec 13.21 Association Leave. The Association is allowed to allocate up to ten (10) days per year or twenty (20) half-day increments to members for Association business. The cost of the substitute will be paid by the Association. All Association leave requests shall be submitted by the Association executive board.

Article 14 - Reduction in Staff/Layoff and Recall

- See 14.1 This layoff procedure shall apply to all layoffs and to all non-renewals or dismissals of probationary teachers for other than performance related reasons.
- Sec 14.2 If the District has formally considered a reduction in staff, it will notify the President of the Association within 15 days. Such notice shall be in writing indicating the programs, which may be affected and will be accompanied by a seniority list of all employees in the bargaining limit.
- Sec 14.2.1 Seniority shall be computed based upon the first date of actual teaching service. Seniority will be broken (forfeited) as a result of any resignation or termination.
- Sec 14.2.2 If two employees are equal in District seniority, the tie will be broken by drawing lots. The established permanent seniority list will be updated yearly to reflect changes and will be distributed to staff.
- Sec 14.3 Inasmuch as possible, normal attrition will be used. That is, employees who resign will not be replaced if there are qualified employees available in the District to meet the revised needs and requirements. "Qualified", for purposes of this article, shall mean the employee's seniority, licensure and competence as defined in Section 14.6.
- Sec 14.4 The District shall make every reasonable effort to transfer employees whose assignments are eliminated to other positions for which they are qualified.
- Sec 14.5 Where existing members of the bargaining unit cannot be transferred to other positions for which they are qualified through every reasonable effort, the District shall lay off employees in the inverse order of seniority (least service/first

released; longest service/last released). Retained employees must be licensed or otherwise authorized by law to teach or hold the position.

- Sec 14.6 The District will determine the employees to be retained by means of the following criteria:
- See 14.6.1 A determination of which employees hold the proper licensure to fill the remaining position(s);
 - See 14.6.2 A determination of the seniority of employees;
 - Sec 14.6.3 The District may retain a less senior teacher, thereby laying off a more senior teacher, only in the event that the less senior teacher possesses more competence. The District shall bear the burden of proof of greater competence of less senior teachers.
 - Sec 14.6.4 For the purpose of administering the term "competence", the parties define the word "recent" and the terms "grade level" and "educational attainment" as follows:
 - Sec 14.6.4.1 Recent: Having taught at a particular grade level within the past six years.
 - Sec 14.6.4.2 Grade Level: Each of the following grade level clusters shall be considered a "grade level": K-6, 6-12.
 - Sec 14.6.4.3 Educational Attainment: (1) an employee is licensed in a given subject or endorsement area at the time that a layoff is declared but has not met the recent teaching requirement, and/or (2) is willing to complete additional training and educational preparation equivalent to eight credit hours prior to the beginning of the new school year in order to qualify for retention. The specific credit hours must be approved by the District. Upon an employee's request or by the District's own initiative, the District will give due consideration to these provisions prior to making the determination to retain or lay off any employee.
 - Sec 14.6.5 The District and the Association shall form a committee with equal number of members to make a recommendation regarding the appropriate measurements of effectiveness and consideration of the inclusion of merit.
- Sec 14.7 Laid off employees may at their option maintain membership in the group for insurance purposes at their own expense.
- Sec 14.8 Any employee laid off under this article shall have the right of recall for any position created or vacant for 27 months after the actual date of layoff. If a laid

off employee is recalled and then laid off again, the 27 month recall starts over from the date of the most recent layoff.

- Sec 14.9 ~~A contract teacher under the Fair Dismissal Law~~ An employee who is recalled shall retain the contract status and position of seniority obtained before the layoff under this article. A probationary ~~teacher under the Fair Dismissal law~~ employee who is recalled shall have ~~years taught~~ length of employment for the District count as if the employment had been continuing for purpose of obtaining contract status. [Tentative Agreement, per SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/8/18.]
- Sec 14.10 Employees shall be recalled in inverse order of layoff, subject again to the requirement that the employee be licensed.
- Sec 14.11 Notice of an offer of recall shall be by certified mail to the employee's mailing address officially registered with the personnel office. Employees shall have the duty to keep the personnel office advised in writing at all times as to their correct mailing address and must register all changes in writing with the personnel office. A copy of the notice of offer of recall shall be mailed immediately to the Association. To accept an offer of recall, the employee must indicate acceptance within ten (10) calendar days of the notice of recall. The ten days begin on the date the employee signs the receipt of said recall offer or the District's receipt of notice of non-delivery. Failure to respond shall constitute a rejection of such offer. Rejection of an offer does not result in either removal from the list or change in relative seniority.
- Sec 14.12 The District shall advise all affected employees of their recall rights in writing at the time of layoff under this article.
- Sec 14.13 Employees who have been reassigned to a subject or position they have not held in the past five years will be eligible for additional training at District expense.

Article 15 - Salary and Miscellaneous Benefits

- Sec 15.1 The salary schedule for ~~2016-2017~~ 2018-2019 ~~and 2017-2018~~ are ~~is~~ attached to this Agreement as Appendix A ~~and Appendix B, respectively~~, and are ~~is~~ incorporated by this reference. The ~~2016-2017~~ 2018-2019 salary schedule includes a 23.5% increase over the schedule that was in effect for ~~2015-2016~~ 2017-2018. ~~The 2017-2018 salary schedule includes a 2% increase over the 2016-2017 schedule.~~ [SHEA Proposal amended 5/24/18.]
- Sec 15.2 Initial Placement: Licensed Staff Members (excluding Career and Technical Education Members --see 15.2.1)-New hires shall be given credit on the salary schedule based on years of licensed experience requiring TSPC issued license or other professional licensure (e.g., Speech Language Pathologist).

- Sec 15.2.1 Career and Technical Education Members - CTE certification shall qualify a teacher for placement in Column I at the step equal to years of work

experience in the discipline for which the CTE teacher was hired. CTE teachers with prior teaching experience will also receive step credit for each year of teaching experience, provided that no more than one year's credit will be given for any year.

Sec 15.2.2 The Superintendent may allot new hires up to three (3) additional vertical placement steps if they are hired for positions identified in the most recent U.S. Department of Education's Teacher Shortage Areas report for the state of Oregon. The Association must be notified of such allotments within one week of date of hire.

Sec 15.3 Whenever an employee gives up non-student contact time to substitute for another employee, additional compensation over the substituting member's daily rate shall be determined by dividing step eight (8) of Column III on the salary schedule by one hundred ninety (190) then dividing by eight (8).

Sec 15.4 The employee portion of the PERS/OPSRP contribution will be deducted from the employee's salary and forwarded by the District to PERS.

Sec 15.5 Teachers who have a current, active National Board or ASHA Certification shall receive an annual stipend in the amount of \$1,250.

Sec 15.6 Horizontal movement: Licensed staff members (excluding Career and Technical Education Members -see Sec 15.6.4) -horizontal movement shall be available to those licensed staff members who have completed sufficient quarter hours of training subsequent to the Bachelor's Degree (and TSPC certification) as indicated on the adopted salary schedule and as long as the following conditions are met:

Sec 15.6.1 The training is taken through an accredited college or university.

Sec 15.6.2 Credits earned for horizontal movement on the salary schedule must match one of the following criteria. Prior approval for horizontal advancement must be secured from the District for courses designated 300 and lower. Approval will not be unreasonably denied, and upon request the reasons for the denial will be provided in writing.

Criteria

1. Course work taken as part of a Professional Development Plan.
2. Course work in advance degree or fifth year, and/or licensure program requirements.
3. College credit courses related to the employee's teaching assignment.
4. District-approved in-service courses or workshops.

Sec 15.6.3 Official notification of credits earned must be from the college or university in the form of an official transcript or grade slip. A change in degree status must have an official transcript or a copy of the degree. These must be on file in the District administration office prior to November 1 if the credit is to apply to a salary change for that school year.

Sec 15.6.4 Career and Technical Education (CTE) Members -CTE teachers will receive credit for movement to the next column based on college coursework, or for approved, documented training relevant to their discipline and included as part of a Professional Development Plan. Credit for training will be at the rate of 1 credit hour for each 8 hours of training.

Sec 15.6.5 When making a horizontal move from column III to IV, the teacher shall be placed on the step equating to their years of service. This may result in the teacher gaining more than one step in that year.

Sec 15.7 All bargaining unit members shall be admitted to all school-sponsored activities at no charge. The staff identification badge shall serve as the admissions pass. Admittance to school sponsored activities shall be a part of the official compensation package.

Sec 15.8 The District shall permit members who live in the District to enroll their children in the school to which the employee is assigned. The employee shall be responsible for transportation of their children. [Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/818.]

Sec 15.9 In the event the District believes that it has overpaid an employee, it will first send a written notice to the employee advising the employee of the amount of the error, the reason for the error, and a suggested repayment schedule. A copy of the notice will be provided to the Union. The suggested repayment schedule shall not require a repayment of more than \$200 per paycheck. The employee will be given three options:

1. Accept the proposed repayment schedule;
2. Propose an alternative repayment schedule; or
3. Reject the repayment schedule.

In the event the parties are unable to agree to a repayment plan, nothing in this agreement prevents the District from seeking a repayment order from the County Circuit Court.

Sec 15.10 Effective July 1, 2018, the District shall pay employees on the 20th of each month with the exception of August, when employees will be paid on the first day of their contract calendar. In the event the 20th falls on a weekend or a holiday, employees shall be paid on the previous work day. [Note: clarification of language in SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/8/18, based on discussion at the table.]

Sec 15.11 New hires paid in August shall be paid by physical check. [Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/8/18.]

Article 16 - Extended Contracts

Sec 16.1 If the applicable program or service is to be provided, extended contracts may be offered for the following positions.

Consumer and Family Science
Guidance Counselors
Media Specialists
High School Department Heads
Middle School Department Heads
High School Activities Director
High School Head Guidance Counselor
High School Athletic Director
Teachers in charge of school businesses
Middle and High School Counselors
Media Specialists
Nurses
CYRC Head Teacher
Other teachers as approved (Article 16.6)

Sec 16.2 A minimum of five days may be assigned for an extended contract position, excluding middle school positions, as listed in Sec.16.1. There shall be allocated twenty (20) days each year to be divided equitably among assigned department heads at the middle school level. Before changing the number of days other than the five days minimum of a previous extended contract, the District will confer with the assigned employee and the Association as to whether the changed number of days is warranted. The building administrator will submit a request to the Superintendent for additional days as needed.

Sec 16.3 The District may contract yearly for additional days beyond the minimum with the approval of the assigned employee and the Association. Acceptance of department head assignments is voluntary.

Sec 16.4 Extended contract days may be established either at the end of a school year or at the beginning of a school year by the District.

Sec 16.5 In all cases of extended contracts the building principal, with the approval of the Superintendent, may convert any one day or days to an hourly segment of any day in the contract period.

Sec 16.6 An employee may request an extended contract based upon the requirements of completing additional work beyond the employee's basic job description.

Sec 16.7 The day shall be equivalent to eight hours for extended contracts.

- Sec 16.8 The pay rate for extended contracts shall be 1/190th of the employee's base pay.
- Sec 16.9 A list of all extended contract positions and the number of days for each position shall be reported to the Association President by October 15. Any additions or deletions after that date shall be reported to the Association President within five (5) days.

Article 17 - Extra Pay Conditions

- Sec 17.1 The extra pay salary schedules are attached to this Agreement as Appendix B and are incorporated by this reference. If the duties of a position contained in Appendix B are performed, the individual(s) performing the work shall be paid the rates contained in Appendix B. [Appendix reference updated to reflect one-year contract proposal.]
- Sec 17.2 Vacant extra pay positions shall be posted in accordance with Sec 9.2 of this Agreement. Bargaining unit members will be given first consideration. If the position goes unfilled then the building principal will select qualified persons for the assignment to Athletics and Activities to fill the extra pay position as a temporary position. [Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/8/18.]
- Sec 17.3 The salary placement of any new extra pay positions shall be negotiated with the Association.
- Sec 17.4 Extra pay of Athletics and Activities as listed shall apply only to bargaining unit members. This in no way restricts the District from securing the services of other persons not covered by this Agreement for the performance of these duties; however, compensation for non-bargaining unit members cannot exceed the levels provided in Appendix B.
- Sec 17.5 For purposes of placement of coaches on the Extra Pay schedule the following conditions apply:
- Sec 17.5.1 Years of experience as a volunteer in the compensated activity shall be accepted;
 - Sec 17.5.2 Years of experience in the compensated activity with m1 other employer shall be accepted;
 - Sec 17.5.3 In the event a Head Coach moves to an Assistant Coach in the compensated activity, years of experience as Head Coach shall be applied to arrive at placement on the Assistant Coach salary scale.
- Sec 17.6 A minimum of one evaluation for the extra duty assignment shall be completed every year by the Athletic Director or the Principal. Forms will be provided by the District. If, in the District's judgment, a written program of assistance for

improvement (plan for improvement) is needed, then one will be established, discussed with the coach and implemented.

Sec 17.7 A list of all extra pay positions and their salaries shall be reported to the Association President by October 15. Any subsequent additions or deletions shall be reported to the Association President within 5 days.

Sec 17.8 If a high school athletic team's season is extended due to participation in the playoffs or state competition, the participating coaches of that team will receive an additional payment of 7% of the stipend for each week the team is in the playoffs. High School Band or Vocal Instructors shall receive a one-time payment equal to seven percent (7%) of their stipend for participation in and attendance at OSAA State Competition(s). [Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/8/18.]

Sec 17.9 Employees will not be asked nor required to perform janitorial work.

Article 18 - Base Hourly Per Diem Rate

Sec 18.1 Base hourly per diem rate will be paid for District-approved after-school clubs, curriculum work, material selection, and staff development. The hourly rate is determined by dividing step +8 of the beginning Column III (BA+45) of the salary schedule by one hundred ninety (190) then dividing by eight (8).

Sec 18.1.1 Material Selection Committee can receive up to six (6) hours of pay for a given year.

Article 19 - Emergency School Closure

Sec 19.1 Temporary school closure may be forced by emergency conditions such as, but not limited to, inclement weather conditions, fire, flood, explosion, failure of heating plant, water supply, electrical service, sewer service, lack of essential energy supply for building use, inability to transport students to and from school, Act of God, or declaration of a state, regional emergency or national emergency, or an emergency declared by the District. The Superintendent or his designee will declare closure.

Sec 19.2 The employees covered in this Agreement are not to report to work when a school closure occurs as set forth in Sec 19.1. The District agrees to pay employees covered by this agreement for any day of closure when students are not required to attend. In consideration of that payment, the Association and employees agree to make up any such lost days without additional pay not to exceed the total number of contractual days. Such make up days may be non-student days for preparation, training or planning.

Article 20 - Employee Insurance

Sec 20.1 The District will contribute up to the following amount toward the full step rate premium per month, per employee, towards the cost of OEGB offered plans selected by the Association effective October 1 of each year:

	2016-2017	2017-2018	2018-2019
Employee Only:	\$652	\$685	\$ 746.65
Employee Plus Spouse:	\$1,374	\$1,443	\$ 1,572.87
Employee Plus Children:	\$1,211	\$1,271	\$ 1,385.39
Family:	\$1,936	\$2,033	\$ 2,215.97

The increase on the District contribution will take effect the month immediately following ratification of this Agreement.

In lieu of retroactive insurance caps, the District will adjust the 2016-2017 rates going forward for the remainder of the 16/17 contract year. The adjusted rates will be the following:

Employee only	\$ 660
Employee/spouse	\$1,390
Employee/Children	\$1,226
Family	\$1,959

2017-2018 insurance caps will remain as listed above.

Disability insurance will be provided with the employee paying the full premium. Any -supplementary or "add-on" insurance coverage will be at the expense of the member and shall be paid for via payroll deduction.

Sec 20.1.1 The District insurance premium contribution amount will not increase during a status quo period.

Sec 20.1.2 Employees who select an OEGB High Deductible Health Plan shall receive a monthly District contribution into a Health Savings Account (H.S.A.) ~~up to the amounts below: equal to one-tenth (1/10) of the maximum annual employer contribution permitted by law. Sec 20.1.2.2~~ ~~Except as provided in Sec 20.1.2.1, The District's H.S.A contribution will be the lesser of the amounts listed above or not exceed the difference between the monthly premium for the OEGB plan selected by the employee and the District's cap amount above the premiums for OEGB plans selected by the employee for that plan.~~

Employee Only:	\$200.00
Employee Plus Spouse:	\$400.00
Employee Plus Children:	\$350.00
Family:	\$550.00

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted Table

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11 pt, Font color: Black

Sec 20.1.2.1 In addition to the above, in October of each year, members who are age 55 or older as of October 1 will receive an additional catch-up contribution of \$1,000 to their HSA.

Sec 20.1.2.1 Contributions to an H.S.A will subject to the maximums allowable under the law. In no case shall the District be obligated to pay any additional contributions into a H.S.A or any other additional compensation beyond the employer H.S.A maximum contribution allowed under the law.

~~Sec 20.1.2.2 The District's H.S.A contribution will be the lesser of the amounts listed above or the difference between the District's cap amount above the premiums for OEGB plans selected by the employee.~~

Sec 20.2 Oregon Educators Benefits Board (OEGB) will be the exclusive provider of medical insurance benefits, effective October 1, 2010.

Sec 20.3 Married couples or domestic partners within the bargaining unit who are both employees of the District shall designate which employee shall be the primary insured. Upon such designation the non-primary employee shall be insured as a dependent on the primary insured's policy, and the District shall no longer provide individual insurance benefits for the identified dependent. Married couples or domestic partners within the bargaining unit who are both employees of the District may choose either the option defined in 20.3.1 or the option defined in 20.3.2.

Sec 20.3.1 The District will make an annual contribution, in the name of the dependent employee, to a qualified IRS Section 125 medical benefit account. The amount of the contribution will be equal to the maximum potential out-of-pocket cost for which the dependent may be liable under the primary insured's policy. The dependent may draw on this account as reimbursement for any qualifying medical expenses during the year. At the end of the year any unspent funds remaining in the medical account will revert to the District.

Sec 20.3.2 Subject to the rules and regulations of the insurance carrier, OEGB, and the IRS, active employees who maintain and provide proof of another medical benefit plan may opt-out of District sponsored health insurance coverage.

Employees who opt-out of health insurance coverage, and who are otherwise eligible for a District contribution towards insurance premiums, will receive a monthly stipend included in their paychecks in the following amounts equal to 27.5% of the family insurance contribution in Sec 20.1, less any imposed surcharges.

- Sec 20.4 Bargaining unit members not covered by 20.3 above may opt out pursuant to 20.3.2 above.
- Sec 20.5 For those employees who work the 190-day contract, as defined in this Agreement, twelve (12) continuous months of benefits will be provided. New employees shall have their benefits start on the first contract day pursuant to carrier rules and regulations.
- Sec 20.6 If an employee's employment is terminated prior to the end of the school year, the District's payment of premiums shall cease as of the last day of the month the employee is employed.
- Sec 20.7 In the event an employee wishes to take an early retirement between ages 62-65, inclusive, and is not eligible for the plan outlined in article 22 of this Agreement, said employee may at the time of retirement elect to remain in the District group insurance plan provided the employee shall reimburse the District for full amount of premiums. This provision is subject to the insurance carrier's approval and is subject to changes in retirement laws.
- Sec 20.8 For the term of this Agreement the District shall offer an IRS Section 125 plan.
- Sec 20.9 District acknowledges the Affordable Care Act as it relates to temporary teachers.

Article 21 - Educational Development and Improvement

- Sec 21.1 Subject to the limitations in the remainder of this article, the District reimbursement will not exceed the rate charged by Portland State University or the Division of Continuing Education. If an employee does not use all the money allocated, the money available for that employee's tuition reimbursement may be accumulated up to an amount equivalent to 16 hours tuition payable in any given year.
- Sec 21.1.1 Employees in their first two (2) years of employment in the District and who are initially placed at step three (3) or below will accrue six (6) hours tuition per year.
- Sec 21.1.2 Employees with three or more years of employment in the District or who are initially placed at step four (4) or above on the salary schedule will accrue four (4) hours tuition per year.
- Sec 21.2 The District may either reimburse members or directly pay the college/testing company for the cost of courses, workshops, or tests described in Sec 21.4. Teachers are required to submit proof of completion of such courses within ninety (90) days of the posting of final grades or forfeit the prepaid amount.

Upon failure to provide proof of course completion or a grade report demonstrating a passing grade as described in this Article, the District shall

deduct the total amount prepaid on the employee's behalf over the next three (3) payroll periods in equal amounts. This provision can only be waived if the student furnishes documentation from the college indicating the college is the cause of the delay.

Sec 21.3 It is the responsibility of the employee to see that evidence of satisfactory course completion (as evidenced by a transcript with grade of "C" or better, including a "Pass" option; grade slip; or college website printout) and/or test results are submitted to the personnel office within 90 days of satisfactory completion.

Sec 21.4 Employees may request District funding for enrollment in course, workshops, and tests. The course, workshop, or test must meet one of the following criteria or be approved by the employee's principal. Employees may but will not be encouraged to use tuition reimbursement for District initiatives. [Amended SHEA proposal, 5/24/18.]

Criteria

1. Course work taken as part of a Professional Development Plan.
2. Course work in advance degree or fifth year, and/or licensure program requirements.
3. College credit courses related to the employee's teaching assignment.
4. District approved in-service courses or workshops.
5. Required test for certification or required licensure with passing score.
6. Approved workshop clock hours for advancement on the salary schedule. Twelve (12) clock hours of workshop time shall be equal to one-quarter (1/4) hour of college credit.

Sec 21.5 The District shall allocate \$90,000 per fiscal year for tuition reimbursement. The District will notify the Association any time the unallocated fund balance reaches five percent (5%) of the amount allocated.

~~Sec 21.5.1 The District will notify the Association any time the unallocated fund balance reaches five (5) percent of the amount allocated.~~

Sec 21.6 Upon District receipt of new/renewed TSPC licensure, members with unused tuition reimbursement hours shall be reimbursed for TSPC charges related to the new or renewal licensure.

Sec. 21.7 Members shall be paid for pre-approved District initiated educational meetings, trainings, conferences, workshops, observations or events of a similar nature held outside of the contract year, at the member's daily salary rate. This will not be deducted from the total (Sec 21.5), nor any individual's tuition reimbursement fund.

Article 22 - Early Retirement

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", Hanging: 0.5"

Sec 22.1 Retiring employees hired prior to July 1, 1993, with a minimum of 17 years of service to the District are eligible for District-paid medical, vision and dental insurance for the retiree and spouse not to exceed \$400 per month until the employee is eligible for Medicare. Benefits will continue for three months for the spouse after the demise of the employee providing the employee was still eligible for benefits at the time of death. The following additional requirements must be met:

Sec 22.1.1 The employee must be eligible for full PERS benefits with 30 years of service at age 55; or

Sec 22.1.2 Age 58 without regard for PERS benefit eligibility; or

Sec 22.1.3 District employees who are less than 55 years of age, but are otherwise eligible for full PERS benefits under Sec 22.1.1 above, may retire at an earlier age if they choose. However, the benefit will be prorated so that the total will not exceed the amount they would have received under Sec 22.1.1 above.

Sec 22.1.4 District employees who choose to retire between the ages of 55 and 58 with less than 30 years of service in PERS may retire earlier if they choose. However, the benefit will be prorated so that the total will not exceed the amount they would have received under Sec 22.1.2 above.

Sec 22.2 All excess funds between the actual cost and the \$400 per month cap shall be deposited into an Early Retirement Fund to help pay for those retiring after September 1, 1993. These dollars, while accounted for separately, shall be pooled with District-invested funds and receive pro-rated interest. The District will make no less than 12 equal monthly installments to this fund. All new hires after July 1, 1993 shall not be eligible for this program.

Sec 22.3 **[Withdrawn.]**

Article 23 - Teaching Methods and Techniques

Sec 23.1 The teaching process requires the use of methods, techniques, skills and approaches which are appropriate to the educational level of students and the subject matter or learning experiences to be taught. Teachers have a prerogative to select those methods, techniques, skills and approaches which are deemed best suited to circumstances and conditions set forth by the above-named factors.

Sec 23.2 The teacher has the right to employ those methods, techniques, skills and approaches designed to fit the appropriate subject matter and to meet the needs of the class and individual students.

Sec 23.3 The District retains the right to review said methods, techniques, skills and approaches. It also retains the right to call upon competent authorities who can

evaluate the appropriate use and effectiveness of said methods, techniques, skills and approaches in question, if necessary.

Sec 23.4 In the event of a review, the teacher shall have the opportunity to present his/her views in a hearing held for this purpose before the District, and has the right to representation of his/her own choosing.

Sec 23.5 The District retains the right to establish the appropriate procedure under the law for the conduct of any such hearing(s). The decision of the District shall be final.

Article 24 - Textbook, Instructional Materials and Instructional Equipment Selection

Sec 24.1 School districts are charged with the responsibility under ORS 337.120 of adopting instructional materials which will be used in the District schools. The District recognizes the rights of teachers to examine, review, compare and evaluate instructional materials and will give careful and serious consideration to recommendations given to the District by teachers and school administrators in the selection of appropriate and sufficient textbooks and instructional materials as required under Oregon law. Further, teachers shall have the opportunity to make recommendations regarding other instructional materials and instructional equipment.

Article 25 - Employee Evaluation

Sec 25.1 Pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute 342.850, the District shall conduct evaluations of teachers based on job descriptions and performance standards with the adopted evaluation policies.

Sec 25.2 Each year a committee representing an equal number of teachers assigned by SHEA and administrators designated by the Superintendent will review the current evaluation process from the Licensed Educators Evaluation and Growth System and suggest modifications if needed. The composition of the committee shall appropriately represent subjects and grade levels.

Sec 25.3 Adoption of changes or revisions shall be through acceptance from SHEA, the Superintendent, and the school Board. Changes will be implemented when the Teacher Evaluation and Professional Growth Handbook is revised and approved. This handbook will serve as an addendum to the current contract and shall become effective with the new evaluation cycle.

Sec 25.4 Where serious deficiencies are identified through the formal observation process and noted in writing in the evaluation documents, a teacher may be placed on a program of assistance for improvement. A Program of Assistance for Improvement (PAI) will be developed by the evaluator in cooperation with the employee. A Program of Assistance for Improvement shall be in writing, in

accordance with ORS 342.815 and shall consist of a minimum of 60 calendar days.

Sec 25.5 An employee may request to have an Association representative present during any meetings held with the evaluator or any other administrator regarding the Program of Assistance for Improvement.

Sec 25.6 While the components of a Program of Assistance for Improvement may be varied the following principles shall be contained in plans resulting from deficiencies noted in the evaluation documents:

- a) The plan will identify the performance standards deemed deficient.
- b) The plan will set forth a description of the expectations related to the deficiency(ies).
- c) The plan will include a description of assistance and resources to be provided to the employee which may include but are not limited to mentoring, coursework, book studies, coaching, classroom visitations, etc.
- d) The plan will identify monitoring procedures.
- e) The plan will establish a completion date.

Sec 25.7 Successful programs of assistance for improvement shall not be placed in personnel files since they are for the specific purpose of improving instruction. Programs of assistance for improvement are not intended to be punitive in nature. Once a plan of assistance has been completed, the supervisor will place a note on the employee's final evaluation documenting the successful completion.

Sec 25.8 The District shall notify the Association president by December 15 of any member who is in danger of non-renewal. Prior to non-renewal, a teacher shall be provided a "plan of awareness" which identifies specific areas of concern and lays out a fair plan to address those concerns.

Article 26 -Employee Rights

Sec 26.1 The District shall not discipline, reprimand, suspend or reduce in compensation any employee without just cause. Just cause for the purpose of this article is defined as:

Sec 26.1.1 The charges against the employee can be substantiated.

Sec 26.1.2 The punishment is to meet the infraction.

Sec 26.1.3 Discipline will be administered in an evenhanded manner.

- Sec 26.1.4 The employee will be told the charges and given the information forming the basis for such action.
- Sec 26.1.5 The employee will have the opportunity to face his/her accusers and respond to the charges.
- Sec 26.1.6 The employee will have the opportunity to discuss the matter with his/her supervisor.
- Sec 26.2 An employee has the right to representation at any stage of the grievance procedure and at any meeting or hearing which may be disciplinary in nature, before the District administration or school Board. The employee may represent himself/herself and be represented by the Association.
- Sec 26.3 Each teacher will prepare a written outline of the evaluation system for determining student grades in accordance with District policy. Teachers will determine grades of students; grades may be changed only after first consulting with the teacher and approval of the Superintendent.
- Sec 26.4 An employee may be given verbal direction, comment or reprimand by the administration for constructive, corrective purposes to prevent employee actions which, if not brought to the attention of the employee, could lead to a more serious infraction or problem.
- Sec 26.5 Any employee has the right to review the contents of his/her personnel file during administration office hours and may file a written rebuttal to anything placed therein. Such rebuttal, once filed, shall be a permanent part of the personnel file as provided by ORS 342.850. Confidential letters of reference secured from sources outside the school system may be excluded from the materials available for the employee's inspection. An employee may request outdated material (more than three (3) years old) related to his/her performance in the District, excluding disciplinary materials, be removed from the personnel file. With concurrence of the Superintendent the material shall be removed.
- Sec 26.5.1 For the purpose of assisting the employee or the Association in the prosecution or defense of any contractual, administrative, or legal proceedings, including but not limited to grievances and Fair Dismissal proceedings, the District shall allow the employee to acquire copies of his/her personnel file and any other files or records of the District which pertain to the employee or any issue in the proceeding in question. The District will be allowed to charge a reasonable fee for the preparation of requested material. A representative of the Association may accompany and assist the employee at any time or may be authorized by the employee to review such information.
- Sec 26.6 Principals and/or supervisors may retain working files for employees he/she supervises. The parties agree material from a principal and/or supervisor's

working file will be either transferred to an employee's personnel file or destroyed within twelve (12) months of the document being created.

- Sec 26.7 Disciplinary measures relating to employees shall be made in private and not in front of students or other employees. However, if the case involves an employee responsible to a staff member who is his/her immediate superior, but not the principal, it may be made in front of another employee.
- Sec 26.8 All information forming the basis for written disciplinary action will be made available to the employee and his/her designated representative at the employee's request.
- Sec 26.9 Nothing in this Article shall be construed so as to apply to the dismissal of a contract or probationary teacher, or the non-renewal or termination of a probationary teacher, it being the intent of the parties that such matters are covered exclusively by the Fair Dismissal Law and are thus not part of this Agreement. Furthermore, nothing in this article shall be construed so as to apply to the assignment to or retention of Extended Contracts and Extra Pay as listed elsewhere in this Agreement. The District and the Association agree that the dismissal or termination of the employment of a non-probationary employee not covered by the Fair Dismissal Law shall be subject to the just cause standard found in Sec 26.1 of this Article. Grievances filed in such circumstances shall be subject to the Grievance and Arbitration procedures found in Article 29 of this Agreement. [Tentative Agreement per SHSD counter proposal #2, 5/8/18.]
- Sec 26.10 Health and Safety
- Sec 26.10.1 The District will comply with ORS 339.327 regarding notification to employees of possible threats.
- Sec 26.10.2 The District shall provide safe and healthful working conditions as provided by applicable laws. Alleged violations of this section are exempt from the grievance process of the Agreement and unfair labor practice procedures and must be pursued through the appropriate state or federal agency.
- Sec 26.10.3 All teachers shall be provided with a copy of the Building discipline codes, and the District's policy on student discipline will be posted on the District website. District and building discipline procedures shall be reviewed with teachers annually.
- Sec 26.10.4 The District shall provide in-service or training on discipline topics, including legal issues surrounding student discipline and methods for intervening in crisis situations. The District will also provide training for case managers and counselors regarding behavior plans under IDEA Section 504 and when information may be shared with staff.

Sec 26.10.5 If an employee has been threatened and feels unsafe, he/she may access leave. Upon notification of the employee by the District of a threat, the employee shall also be notified of his/her right to access paid district leave for the remainder of the school day. The employee must notify the principal before taking leave and will be allowed to begin this leave no later than one (1) hour after giving notification. The District reserves the right to extend additional paid district leave to the employee; however, an employee may use his or her own paid leave if additional paid days are not granted. In either case, if this leave extends to 72 hours, the employee and a SHEA representative must meet with the administration to resolve any outstanding issues and concerns.

Sec 26.11 In accordance with ORS 339.327, when any district administrator has reasonable cause to believe that a person, while in a school, is or has been in possession of a list that threatens harm to other persons, shall notify any member whose name appears on the list as a target of the harm. The District shall notify the member(s) specified by telephone or in person promptly but not later than 12 hours after discovering the list or learning of the threat. The District shall follow up the notice with a written notification sent within 24 hours after discovering the list or learning of the threat.

Sec 26.11.1 Employees shall be informed prior to being assigned to work with or supervise student(s) who evidence deviant behaviors that could present a safety problem to the students or employees. Employees shall be provided with specific information about the known behavior pattern(s) of the student(s) and suggested strategies for managing those behaviors.

Sec 26.11.2 Prior to the first student contact day, every member shall receive copies, and a review presentation of reasonable written rules regarding pupil conduct, discipline, and rights and procedures pertaining thereto.

Sec 26.11.3 The District will ensure that any student who has threatened to injure another person (including any Association member) or to severely damage school property will immediately be removed from the classroom.

- i. The student will be placed in a setting where the behavior will receive immediate attention. Such setting may include, but shall not be limited to, the office of the school principal, vice principal, assistant principal, counselor or a school psychologist licensed by the Employee Standards and Practices Commission or the office of any licensed mental health professional.
- ii. The District will obtain an evaluation of a student by a licensed mental health professional before allowing the student to return to the classroom.

- iii. Prior to the student returning to the classroom, the District will meet with member(s) involved and Association representatives to discuss and arrive at a safety plan to be implemented upon the student's return.
- iv. During the first yearly in-service day, the District will present training on its policies for the use of physical force, including the use of restraints, upon a student. The presentation must train members what constitutes reasonable physical force, and when such force may be applied and to the extent the application of force is consistent with ORS 339.291.

Article 27 - Strikes and Lockouts

- Sec 27.1 During the period of this Agreement, neither the Association, its officers, agents, nor any of the employees covered by this Agreement will engage in, encourage, sanction, support or suggest any strikes, slow-downs, mass resignations, mass absenteeism, the willful absence from one's position, the stoppage of work or the abstinence in whole or in part of the full, faithful and proper performance of the duties of employment for the purpose of inducing, influencing or coercing a change in the conditions or compensation, or the rights, privileges or obligations of employment. Employees in the bargaining unit, while acting in the course of their employment with the District, shall not honor any picket line by the Association or its agents against the District, or any line established by any District employee organization or its agents or any organization attempting or claiming District employee representation against the District.
- Sec 27.2 In the event any employee violates this Article, the Association shall immediately notify any such employee in writing to cease and desist from such action and shall instruct them to immediately return to their normal duties. Any or all employees who violate the provisions of this article, directly or indirectly, may be disciplined, including discharge by the District. Such disciplinary action may be undertaken selectively at the option of the District and shall not preclude or restrict recourse to any other remedies, including any action for damages, which may be available to the District.
- Sec 27.3 There will be no lockout of employees in the unit by the District as a consequence of any dispute arising during the period of this Agreement.

Article 28 - Labor Relations Committee

- Sec28.1 The Superintendent with or without a designee such as Director of Personnel, and SHEA president with another SHEA officer may meet once each month as a means of establishing ongoing communications and sharing of mutual concerns and interests.

- Sec 28.2 A contract maintenance committee will be established for the purposes of discussing ongoing labor-management issues, reviewing the contract, and recommending to the District and the Association solutions, contract interpretations, or interventions necessary to continue the collaborative efforts by both parties. It is expressly understood by the parties that the committee shall have no authority to negotiate terms and conditions of employment or modify or amend any provision of this Agreement, nor shall it have authority to adjust grievances.
- Sec 28.3 Both SHEA and the District will be equally represented. The Association representatives will be selected by SHEA from its negotiating team and, at SHEA option, the OEA UniServ Consultant. The District will be represented by the Superintendent, Director of Personnel, Director of Fiscal Services, and two (2) Board members, one from each of its subcommittees during negotiations.
- Sec 28.4 The SHEA president and the Superintendent will establish the committee's meeting schedule to include at least one meeting every four (4) months. The committee will establish its own ground rules.

Article 29 - Grievance Procedures

Sec 29.1 DEFINITIONS

- Sec 29.1.1 Grievance. A "grievance" is a claim by a teacher, group of teachers, or the Association based upon the interpretation, application or violation of this Agreement, affecting a teacher or a group of teachers. Grievances based on school Board policy or administrative decisions alleging inequities affecting working conditions shall be processed using this grievance procedure; the decision of the School Board on these grievances is final and binding.
- Sec 29.1.2 Grievant. A "grievant" is the person or persons making the claim.
- Sec 29.1.3 Party in Interest. A "party in interest" is the person or persons making the claim and any person who might be required to take action or against whom action might be taken in order to resolve this claim.
- Sec 29.1.4 Days. "Days" shall mean teacher work days, except as otherwise indicated.
- Sec 29.1.5 Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee. This is a term to be used interchangeably with the term Grievance Committee.

Sec 29.2 PURPOSE

- Sec 29.2.1 The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, equitable solutions to the problems, which may from time to time arise

affecting teachers. Both parties agree that these proceedings will be kept informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure.

- Sec 29.2.2 Any ~~teacher-employee~~ having a grievance may discuss the matter informally with any appropriate member of the administration. Any adjustment or resolution of the grievance must be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Association shall have been given the opportunity to be present for such adjustment or resolution and shall have been provided the opportunity to state its views.

Sec 29.3 PROCEDURE

- Sec 29.3.1 Employees have the right to representation at each level of the grievance procedure. This representation will be an Association Representative of the employee's choice.
- Sec 29.3.2 Time Limits. The number of days indicated at each level should be considered as a maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process. The time limits specified may, however, be extended by mutual agreement in writing. When a grievance is submitted on or after May 1, the time limits shall consist of all calendar days so that the matter may be resolved before the close of the school term or as soon as possible thereafter.
- Sec 29.3.3 Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limit shall be construed as a denial and permit the lodging of an appeal at the next step of the procedure.
- Sec 29.3.4 Any grievance not advanced from one step to the next within the time limits of that step shall be deemed resolved by the answer at the previous step and therefore dropped.
- Sec 29.3.5 Year-End Grievances. In the event a grievance is filed at such time that it cannot be processed through all the steps in this grievance procedure by the end of the school year, and if left unresolved until the beginning of the following school year could result in irreparable harm to a party in interest, the time limits set forth herein shall be reduced so that the Grievance procedure may be exhausted prior to the end of the school year or as soon thereafter as is practicable.
- Sec 29.3.6 Level One - Principal or Immediate Superior. A teacher with a grievance shall first provide notification or discuss it with his/her principal or immediate superior, either directly or with the Association's designated representative, with the objective of resolving the matter informally. This notification shall take place within ten (10)-working days of first knowledge of the incident or act creating the grievance. A written copy of

the decision will be sent to the Superintendent, grievant, and the Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee of the St. Helens Education Association. If the grievance remains unresolved following the informal meeting with the principal the grievance may be presented in writing to the principal within five (5) days of the informal meeting. The principal will respond to the grievant in writing within five (5) days of the receipt of the written grievance, setting forth the disposition of the grievance at that level. A written copy of the decision will be sent to the Superintendent, grievant, and the Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee of the St. Helens Education Association.

Sec 29.3.7 Level Two - Superintendent

Sec 29.3.7.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level One, or if no decision has been rendered, he/she may file the grievance in writing with the Superintendent or his/her designee within five (5) days after the written filing at Level One.

Sec 29.3.7.2 Within ten (10) working days after receipt of the written grievance by the Superintendent or designee, he/she will meet with the grievant and a representative of the Association in an effort to resolve the grievance. He/She will respond to the grievant in writing within five (5) days of the meeting at Level Two, setting forth the disposition of the grievance at that level. A written copy will be sent to the Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee of the Association.

Sec 29.3.8 Level Three - School Board

Sec 29.3.8.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Two or if no decision has been rendered, he/she, may appeal the grievance to the school Board through the Superintendent within ten (10) days after the meeting with the Superintendent at Level Two.

Sec 29.3.8.2 Within five (5) working days of receipt of the appeal to Level Three the Superintendent of Schools shall forward the grievance along with all related papers to the school Board.

Sec 29.3.8.3 Within ten working days after receipt of the written grievance by the school Board, or by the next Board meeting, the Board shall then hold a hearing with the grievant and witnesses and render a decision in writing within five (5) days after the conclusion of the hearing.

Sec 29.3.8.4 A copy of the school Board's decision shall be sent to the Superintendent, grievant, Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee of the Association and the immediate superior.

Sec 29.3.9 Level Four - Arbitration

Sec 29.3.9.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Three, or if no decision has been rendered within five (5) working days of school Board hearing, he/she may within five to fifteen (5-15) days after the school Board hearing, request in writing that the Association submit the grievance to arbitration. If the Association determines that the grievance involves the interpretation, meaning or application of any of the provisions of this Agreement, it may, by written notice to the Superintendent within 15 working days after receipt of the request from the grievant submit the grievance to binding arbitration. If any question arises as to whether a particular dispute involves the interpretation, meaning or application of any of the provisions of this Agreement, such question will first be ruled upon by the arbitrator selected to hear the dispute. In the event that a case is appealed to an arbitrator on which he/she has no power to rule, it shall be referred back to the parties without decision or recommendation on its merits.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the arbitration will be conducted in accordance with the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association in effect at the time.

Sec 29.3.9.2 Within ten (10) working days after such written notice of submission to arbitration, the Superintendent and the Association will attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable arbitrator and to obtain a commitment from such arbitrator to serve. If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator or to obtain such a commitment within the 10-day period, a request for a list of five arbitrators shall be made to the Employment Relations Board by either party. Upon receipt of the list of five arbitrators, both parties shall strike one name from the list until one name remains. The first one to strike a name shall be determined by a flip of a coin.

Sec 29.3.9.3 The arbitrator so selected will confer with the representatives of the school Board and the Association and hold hearings promptly and will issue his/her decision not later than 30 calendar days from the date of the close of the hearings or, if oral hearings have been waived, then from the date the final statements, briefs, and documentation are submitted to him/her. The arbitrator's decision

will be in writing and will set forth his/her findings of fact, reasoning and conclusions on the issues submitted. The arbitrator will be without power or authority to make any decision which requires the commission of an act prohibited by law or which modifies, the terms of this Agreement. The decision of the arbitrator will be submitted to the Board and the Association and will be final and binding upon the parties.

- Sec 29.3.9.4 The costs for the services of the arbitrator, including per diem expenses, if any, and his/her travel and subsistence expenses and the cost of any hearing room will be borne equally by the Board and the Association. All other costs will be borne by the party incurring them.

Sec 29.4 RIGHTS OF TEACHERS TO REPRESENTATION

- Sec 29.4.1 Teacher and Association. Any grievant may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by himself/herself and, at his/her option, by a representative selected or approved by the Association. The Association shall have the right to be present.
- Sec 29.4.2 Reprisals. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board, Association or by any member of the administration against any party in interest, any representative, any member of the Association, or any other participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.

Sec 29.5 MISCELLANEOUS

- Sec 29.5.1 Special Circumstances. If a grievance arises from action or inaction on the part of the administration at a level above the principal or immediate superior, the grievant will submit such grievance in writing to the Superintendent and the Association directly and the processing of such grievance will be commenced at Level Two.
- Sec 29.5.2 Written Decisions. Decisions rendered at Level One which are unsatisfactory to the grievant and all decisions rendered at Level Two and Level Three of the grievance procedure shall be in writing setting forth the decision and the reasons therefore and shall be transmitted promptly to all parties in interest and to the Association. Decisions rendered at Level Four shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in 29.3.8.3 of this article.
- Sec 29.5.3 Separate Grievance File. All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed in a separate grievance file and shall not be kept in the personnel file of any of the participants.

- Sec 29.5.4 Forms. Forms for filing grievances, serving notices, taking appeals, making reports and recommendations and other necessary documents shall be prepared jointly by the Superintendent and the Association and given appropriate distribution so as to facilitate operation of the grievance procedure.
- Sec 29.5.5 The grievant will be required to exhaust the grievance procedure set forth in this article before seeking alternative remedies provided that by doing so the grievant will not be deemed to have waived or otherwise prejudiced any constitutional, statutory or other legal rights.
- Sec 29.5.6 It is agreed by the Association and the District any grievance regarding Article 8, Nondiscrimination, shall only be processed through Level Three - School Board. If the grievance is not resolved to the complainant's satisfaction, the complainant may choose to pursue resolution by any claim, suit or charge filed with any state or federal agency or court.

Article 30 - Complaint Procedure

- Sec 30.1 Upon receiving any communication about an employee or his/her class, either positive or negative, the principal will inform the staff member via a copy of the communication log page. Should a complainant wish to remain anonymous, a form will not be filled out nor disciplinary action taken. Should a criminal act be reported, it would fall outside of this procedure. If a complaint is made against an employee to the administration, such complaint shall be processed under the following circumstances:
- Sec 30.1.1 If the principal intends to make a record in the evaluation report of a complaint received concerning an employee;
- Sec 30.1.2 If the principal intends to place a record of such complaint in the employee's personnel file;
- Sec 30.1.3 If, in the principal's judgment, such complaint is sufficiently relevant to the employee's performance as to indicate the desirability of a conference.
- Sec 30.2 Pursuant to 30.1 above, a conference shall be held with the principal, the complainant and if not the administrator must document at least two attempts to request attendance and the employee within ten (10) working days after the complaint is made to the administration for the purpose of attempting to resolve the complaint
- Sec 30.3 Any such complaint which the administration chooses not to discuss with the employee or which is not discussed within the required time shall not be considered in the employee's evaluation and shall not be used against the employee in any subsequent action by the District.

- Sec 30.4 Records and documents relating to complaints which are unsubstantiated or unfounded will be destroyed.
- Sec 30.5 Any discipline resulting from the District's processing of a complaint shall be in accordance with Article 26, Section 26.1 (Just Cause).

Article 31- Re-employment of Retired Employees

- Sec 31.1 Bargaining Unit members who retire under PERS/OPSRP mid-year and who are subsequently employed to complete their assignment will continue to be members of the bargaining unit until the end of the school year.
- Sec 31.2 Bargaining unit members shall give sixty (60) days' notice of retirement to the District in order to be eligible for rehire. The District is not obligated to re-employ mid-year retired employees and has the sole discretion over hiring decisions. The District shall advise, upon request, potential mid-year retirees as to whether or not they will be rehired for the remainder of the school year.
- Sec 31.3 Mid-year retirees shall not be employed beyond the end of the school year in which they retire. The termination of this limited duration assignment shall not be considered discipline or dismissal, and shall not grant the employee rights under article 14-Reduction in Staff: Layoff and Recall.
- Sec 31.4 Mid-year retired employees shall have the benefit of the provisions of this agreement except as follows:
- Sec 31.4.1 Discretionary Leave. Retirees will be eligible to use any remaining discretionary leave.
 - Sec 31.4.2 Sick Leave. Retirees will be eligible to use any remaining annual sick leave days earned in the year of retirement. These eligible days will be deducted from the total number of days reported to PERS.
 - Sec 31.4.3 Insurance benefits shall be provided as per Article 20. Qualifying employees shall receive the benefits of article 22 upon completion of service with the District.
 - Sec 31.4.4 No PERS/OPSRP contributions shall be made after the retirement date.
 - Sec 31.4.5 For the entire period during which they are re-employed by the District, retirees will work no more than 1,039 hours per calendar year. Retirees will be required to keep accurate records of hours worked and submit said record to payroll monthly.

~~Article 32—Funding~~

- ~~Sec 32.1 — The district recognizes that its financial health is directly correlated to its ability to fund the collective bargaining agreement and the employee's compensation package. It is important for there to be on-going conversations regarding the District financial status so that representatives of the Union have information as it develops rather than waiting until a crisis occurs. To that end, the district will provide a monthly cash flow statement for the district's general fund to the Association President.~~
- ~~Sec 32.2 — If the District is considering a reduction of the employee work year, the Administration will notify the Union a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days prior to the recommendation to the School Board. During this period of time, the Union can request a meeting with the Administration to discuss the recommendation and other potential options.~~
- ~~Sec 32.3 — If the District closes its schools because of lack of funds, no member of the bargaining unit shall be entitled to any of the monetary benefits provided in this Agreement while the schools are closed except as otherwise required by law or statute.~~

Appendix A: ~~2016-2017~~2018-2019 Salary Schedule

Step	I	II	III	IV	V
	BA	BA+30	BA+45	BA+75/ Masters	BA+105/ Masters+30
1	\$41,561 \$39,369	\$42,809 \$40,550	\$43,183 \$40,905	\$45,262 \$42,874	\$47,714 \$45,196
2	\$43,060 \$40,788	\$55,691 \$41,969	\$44,847 \$42,480	\$47,511 \$45,004	\$49,793 \$47,166
3	\$44,596 \$42,243	\$45,802 \$43,386	\$46,466 \$44,015	\$48,835 \$46,259	\$51,869 \$49,132
4	\$46,093 \$43,664	\$47,340 \$44,842	\$48,131 \$45,594	\$50,665 \$47,992	\$53,990 \$51,144
5	\$47,631 \$45,148	\$48,835 \$46,259	\$49,750 \$47,125	\$52,452 \$49,684	\$56,069 \$53,110
6	\$49,127 \$46,535	\$50,373 \$47,716	\$51,413 \$48,700	\$54,280 \$51,416	\$58,146 \$55,078
7	\$50,665 \$47,992	\$51,869 \$49,132	\$53,035 \$50,237	\$56,069 \$53,110	\$60,226 \$57,048
8	\$52,162 \$49,440	\$53,408 \$50,590	\$54,654 \$51,770	\$57,855 \$54,803	\$62,343 \$59,054
9	\$53,699 \$50,865	\$54,904 \$52,007	\$56,316 \$53,345	\$59,682 \$56,534	\$64,423 \$61,024
10	\$55,194 \$52,282	\$56,442 \$53,463	\$57,937 \$54,880	\$61,470 \$58,227	\$66,501 \$62,992
11	\$56,717 \$53,724	\$57,937 \$54,880	\$59,600 \$56,456	\$63,257 \$59,920	\$68,578 \$64,960
12	-	-	\$61,222 \$57,992	\$65,086 \$61,652	\$70,698 \$66,968
13	-	-	-	\$66,873 \$63,345	\$72,775 \$68,936
14	-	-	-	\$68,661 \$65,038	\$74,854 \$70,905
15	-	-	-	\$70,491 \$66,771	\$76,931 \$72,872
16	-	-	-	\$72,277 \$68,463	\$79,052 \$74,884

Formatted Table

Employees with twenty-five or more years of service will receive a 10% longevity step added to their salary.

Appendix B: 2017-2018 Salary Schedule

Step	I	II	III	IV	V
	BA	BA+30	BA+45	BA+75/ Masters	BA+105/ Masters+30
1	\$40,156	\$41,361	\$41,723	\$43,731	\$46,100
2	\$41,604	\$53,808	\$43,330	\$45,904	\$48,109
3	\$43,088	\$44,253	\$44,895	\$47,184	\$50,115
4	\$44,534	\$45,739	\$46,503	\$48,952	\$52,164
5	\$46,020	\$47,184	\$48,068	\$50,678	\$54,173
6	\$47,466	\$48,670	\$49,674	\$52,444	\$56,180
7	\$48,952	\$50,115	\$51,242	\$54,173	\$58,189
8	\$50,398	\$51,602	\$52,806	\$55,899	\$60,235
9	\$51,883	\$53,047	\$54,412	\$57,664	\$62,244
10	\$53,328	\$54,533	\$55,978	\$59,391	\$64,252
11	\$54,799	\$55,978	\$57,585	\$61,118	\$66,259
12	-	-	\$59,152	\$62,885	\$68,307
13	-	-	-	\$64,612	\$70,314
14	-	-	-	\$66,339	\$72,323
15	-	-	-	\$68,107	\$74,329
16	-	-	-	\$69,833	\$76,379

Formatted Table

Appendix ~~EB~~: Extra-Duty Salary Schedule Index - ~~2016-2018~~2018-2019

	I	II	III	IV	The following percentages are multiplied by the base salary for that year of the contract to arrive at a salary for each position.
Row	1-2 years experience	3-4 years experience	5-6 years experience	7+ years experience	
1	17.00%	18.00%	19.00%	20.00%	Athletic Director (if an Association member)
2	13.00%	14.00%	15.00%	16.00%	Head Football, Basketball, Wrestling, Track, Softball, Baseball, Volleyball
3	12.25%	13.25%	14.25%	15.25%	Head Cross Country, Swimming, Soccer, Golf, Tennis, Cheerleading (Full Year)
4	11.25%	12.25%	13.25%	14.25%	Band Instructor, High School Activities Director, CCEC Director
5	9.50%	10.25%	11.00%	11.75%	Asst., JV, Frosh: Football, Basketball, Wrestling, Track, Softball, Baseball, Volleyball; Vocal Instruction
6	8.50%	9.25%	10.00%	10.75%	Asst., JV, Frosh; Soccer, Tennis; Publications
7	6.00%	6.50%	7.00%	7.50%	Advisors: VICA, FBLA, Thespians, Sports Medic (each of 3 seasons), Drama Coach [per play (non-musical)]
8	2.50%	3.00%	3.50%	4.00%	Asst. Drama (each play, a to a max of 3 plays)
9	0.35%	0.35%	0.35%	0.35%	Saturday School (daily rate)
10	0.16%	0.16%	0.16%	0.16%	Dance Chaperone (each event)
11	8.25%	8.50%	8.75%	9.00%	Middle School Athletic Director
12	7.00%	7.50%	8.00%	8.50%	Head Teacher <u>Employee</u> , Second Language Coordinator, Drama Coach (for musical play), Robotics Advisor
13	4.75% <u>5.25%</u>	5.00% <u>5.50%</u>	5.25% <u>5.75%</u>	5.50% <u>6.00%</u>	Middle School Coaches: 7/8 Football, Cross Country, Wrestling, Track, Basketball, Volleyball
14	5.50%	6.00%	6.50%	7.00%	Middle School Yearbook, Cubs Corner
15	6.00%	6.00%	6.00%	6.00%	Event Manager (each of 2 seasons)
16	3.75%	4.25%	4.75%	5.25%	Elementary Vocal (per instructor that does performance), Middle School Vocal (per instructor that does performance), Asst. Band Director, Dance Team (each of 2 seasons), MS Band (per instructor that does performance)
17	1.00%	1.50%	2.00%	2.50%	Building TAG Liaison, Middle School Department Head, Web Master, K-2 Vocal, <u>National Honor Society</u>
18	2.00%	2.50%	3.00%	3.50%	Site Council Facilitator, High School Department Head, Math team leader, Literacy team leader
19	\$1,060	\$1,272	\$1,590	\$2,120	Additional Coach-Paid for by Associated Student Body funds

- Previous years of coach experience in a sport from another District will be included in placement.
- Years of volunteer experience at appropriate level in a sport will be included in placement.
- Movement down from Head Coach to Asst Coach will not result in loss of placement on schedule. (i.e.) u coach with seven year of Head Basketball coach experience moving to Asst. Basketball Coach will move to the 7+ year column on the Asst. Basketball pay line).

Confirmation of Agreement

This is to certify that the St. Helens Education Association, and the School Board of the St. Helens School District 502 have officially ratified this Agreement in accordance with required procedure of their respective organizations. All pre-existing agreements and understandings between the Association and the District are hereby declared null and void by the confirmation of this Agreement.

EXECUTED this 14 day of December, 2016, at St. Helens, Oregon,
by the undersigned officers by the authority of and on behalf of the St. Helens Education Association and the School Board of the St. Helens School District #502.

Building Annual Contract Check List _____ (year)

Articles to review prior to students arriving or as reasonable close as possible; no later than October 31st.

_____ (school name) as a staff has completed the following training:

*Article 26.10.3 All teachers shall be provided with a copy of the Building Discipline Code and the District's policy on student discipline will be posted on the District website. District and Building discipline procedures shall be reviewed with teachers annually.

*Article 26.10.4 An annual in-service on discipline topics, including legal issues surrounding student discipline and methods for intervening in crisis situations. The District will also provide training for case managers and counselors regarding behavior plans under IDEA Section 504 and when information may be shared with staff.

SHEA Representative (print)

Building Principal (print)

SHEA Representative (sign)

Date

Building Principal (sign)

Date